
































































































Service Area 



RFP Timetable 
Proposal advertised and available 
for pick-up  

September 9, 2013 

Pre-Submittal Meeting September 19, 2013 
Deadline for receipt of questions   September 27, 2013 at  

5:00PM 
Deadline for receipt of proposals  October 11, 2013 at 5:00PM 
Evaluation Committee meeting  October  23-25, 2013 
Oral Presentations  (if necessary)  November 13-14, 2013  
DDA Committee Meeting (as 
necessary) 

December 2013 

DDA Board Review/Approval  December 2013 
Contract Award (anticipated) December 2013 

* The schedule and all dates are tentative, 
and may be adjusted by the DDA as necessary 



Q & A  

• Open question and answer session 



Further Questions 

• Questions should be directed in writing to:  
  Jennifer Rodero 
  Miami Downtown Development Authority 
  200 South Biscayne Boulevard, Suite 2929 
  Miami, Florida 33131 
  Email: rodero@miamidda.com 

 



 
 

THANK YOU! 
 

Presenter
Presentation Notes
The Core of Downtown - Assisting the public with top quality customer service by providing SAFETY WALKS, HOURLY PATROL and providing MAPS and DIRECTIONS all around the downtown area and perimeter.
Teamwork and communication




a. Is there a walk through included as part of the RFP process? 
 
Answer: No, the DDA has no scheduled a walk through as part of the RFP process.  
 

b. When you reference ‘CBD Weekend’ is that Friday and Saturday nights?  
 
Answer:  Friday and Saturday (daytime crew) 
 

c. The shifts listed as ‘CBD Night’- are those 2 days, 5 days or 7 days?  
 
Answer:  Thursday, Friday and Saturday (nighttime crew) 
 

d. The shifts listed as ‘Brickell Night’ - are those 2 days, 5 days or 7 days?  
 
Answer:  Thursday, Friday and Saturday (nighttime crew) 
 

e. The shifts listed as ‘Biscayne Boulevard’ – are those 2 days, 5 days or 7 days?  
 
Answer:  These are the hours worked by the Miami Heat Crew (follows the heat schedule –day or 
night; generally they are at night)  currently, they work up to 5 hours; but not always 5 hours. 
 

f. How many Security Guards / Ambassadors at current contract ?  
 

Answer:  18 

g. Who is the current vendor?   
 
Answer:  Please refer to question b on the following document (RFP No. 12-13-06 - Pre-submittal 
Meeting) 
 

h. How long has current vendor serviced current contract?  
 
Answer:  The current vendor has serviced this contract since 2010.   
 

i. What is the current contracted price?  
 
Answer:  The current contracted rate is as follows:   
Ambassadors – 15.46 per hour, Site Supervisor – 18.16 per hour, Project Manager – 20.18 per hour 
 

j. Is there any changes ( add-on , deductions, etc ) made on this bid from your current contract ? 
Under description of services and equipment, are those requirements the same as your current 
contract.    
 
Answer:  Yes, the Description of Services/Qualification (Section 2.0) are the same services that we 
are receiving from the current contractor.  The Equipment and Uniforms (Section 2.0) have a few 
new additions; smart phones, messenger bags, and jacket/rain coats.  These items are new to the 
required equipment and uniform section. 
 

k. Please send us the file of the presentation that was given during the prebid.  
 
Answer:   The presentation has been posted to the Miami DDA Website.  (www.miamidda.com) 
 



l. Is there a set pay rate that the DDA would like all bidders to use?  (For example, some cities state 
you cannot pay less than $10.00 p/hr)   
 
Answer:  No; there is not a set pay rate.  The pay rate is up to the discretion of the contractor.  
 

m. What is the current hourly rates that DDA is paying for security services?  Are there different 
billable hourly rates for events?   
 
Answer:  The current contracted rate is as follows:  Ambassadors – 15.46 per hour, Site Supervisor 
– 18.16 per hour, Project Manager – 20.18 per hour 
 
No; the billable hourly rate for events is the same on the current contract.   
 

n. Who is the evaluation committee composed of? 
 
Answer:  The Evaluation Committee consists of (3-5) members.  Each has the requisite knowledge 
and experience to evaluate proposals received pursuant to this RFP.  To date (October 4) we do not 
have all the responses from the proposed evaluation committee members.  
 

o. Pg 6 section 2.4, states selected contractor must provide evidence that contractor is qualified in the 
management of “Ambassador-type programs in comparable communities, and will be able to 
provide evidence of these qualifications and at least 2 years of directly relevant management 
experience.”   Our firm manages approximately 600 security officers and provides security to a vast 
variety of clients.  (Government, Commercial, Health Care, & Residential)  Do we qualify to submit a 
proposal? 
 
Answer:  All interested firms can submit a proposal.  Under the Qualifications Section (2.4), it does 
state the following:  the selected contractor must provide evidence that contractor is qualified in 
the management of Ambassador-type programs in comparable communities, and will be able to 
provide evidence of these qualifications.   
 

p. Since there is not a pricing form provided, does the DDA prefer a price given as a yearly cost or an 
hourly rate with breakdown as mentioned in the RFP? 
 
Answer:  Please refer to Section 3.0 (Proposal Submittals – C. Budget) for information pertaining to 
the Budget portion of the submittal.  There is no preference; but either format must include a total 
proposed fee (separate for years 1 & 2).  
 

q. What are the days of work designated for the “Brickell Night” and “Biscayne Boulevard” 
assignments? 
 
Answer:  Brickell Night - Thursday, Friday and Saturday (nighttime crew) 
Biscayne Boulevard - These are the hours worked by the Miami Heat Crew (follows the heat 
schedule –day or night; generally they are at night)     

 

r. Pg. 18 Under Criteria Scoring – Are the total 25 points based on lowest price or rather a value of 
offerings to price (e.g., best value)?   
 



Answer:  The scoring / ranking for the Operating Budget & Fee Proposal will not be based on the 

lowest bid; it will be geared more towards the value of offerings to price (best value) of the 

proposal.   

 

s. Pg. 18 Under Criteria Scoring – What constitutes/qualifies as “Local Preference” 
 

Answer:  In an effort to promote the participation of local vendors in the procurement process, the 

City of Miami Ordinance 11087 has been established to provide that if the amount of a bid or 

proposal submitted by a vendor whose primary office is located within the City of Miami is not 

more than 10% in excess of the lowest responsible bidder or proposer, such local vendor may be 

offered the opportunity of accepting the contract at the low bid amount.  

 

t. Please specify what equipment is required for each DDA officer?  Do they all need a 2-way 
radio?  Cell Phone?  Tour System? 

 

Answer:  Please refer to the Equipment and Uniforms Section (Section 2.9) of the RFP.  The 

Ambassadors currently use cellular phones, two-way radios, 1 smart phone (Project Manager), and 

digital cameras. 

u. How many bicycles are needed?  It is up to the Contractor to propose the number of equipment 
(bicycles) they will be using.  Currently, the Ambassadors have 3 bicycles available.   

 

Answer:  The Ambassadors currently place one Ambassador (per shift) on bicycle patrol. 

v. Does the DDA require any additional structures other than the local office to serve as an office 
or a work station? 

 

Answer:  No; there is not a requirement of any additional structures other than a local office.   

w. Section 3.0.A.2.A, 5th bullet on RFP 10 requires the bidder to submit a “current Certificate of 
Good Standing from state in which company is registered to do business”.  Our company was 
formed in Delaware and is registered to do business in Florida along with many other states. 
From what state should we obtain the Certificate of Good Standing? 
 

Answer:  Florida  

x. The Cover sheet at RFP page 20 requires an “authorized signer” for the cover sheet and we 
presume the other documents should also be signed by an “authorized signer” as directed by 
the cover sheet. However we have a few questions regarding the Certificate of Authority for 
Corporations: 
Should there be a line to identify the signer after the phrase “RESOLVED , that”? 

Answer:  Yes  



y. Who is required to be identified as the authorized signer by that form, a company officer such 
as the President or a Vice President? Our officers are not local to Florida and travel frequently. 
Is it acceptable for the Corporation Certificate of Authority to refer to a locally authorized 
signer and for that locally authorized signer to sign all bid documents to be submitted with the 
proposal? 

 

Answer:  Yes  

z. How should bidders indicate any required changes to the Insurance Requirements document 
at Section 7.3 which must be submitted with the proposal? 

 

Answer:  Pending Clarification (Will be updated ASAP) 

 



 

 
   

Wachovia Financial Center  
200 S. Biscayne Boulevard 
Suite 2929 
Miami, Florida 33131 
Tel: (305) 579-6675 
Fax: (305) 371-2423 

 

Request for Proposals for Downtown Ambassador Services 
RFP No. 12-13-06 

Pre-submittal Meeting 
September 19, 2013 | 10:00AM 

 
I. Presentation by Jennifer Rodero (please see copy of the presentation below) 

 
Presubmittal Agenda 

 Introduction to the Miami DDA 

 RFP Goals 

 Ambassador Services 

 Service Areas 

 Timeline 

 Q & A 
Miami Downtown Development Authority (DDA) 

• The Mission of the Miami Downtown Development Authority is to grow, strengthen and promote the 
economic health and vitality of Downtown Miami. As an autonomous agency of the City, the Miami DDA 
advocates, facilitates plans and executes business development, planning and capital improvements, and 
marketing and communication strategies. We commit to fulfill our mission collaboratively, ethically and 
professionally, consistent with the Authority's public purpose. 

 
RFP Goals & Objectives 

 The Miami Downtown Development Authority (“DDA”) is issuing this request for proposals (“RFP”) to 
solicit proposals from qualified and experienced firms to provide Security and Hospitality related Services 
(“Services”) throughout the Downtown area.  

 
Ambassador Services  
 
Hospitality-related functions may include:  

• Greeting Downtown workers, visitors, and residents with a smile and helpful attitude  
• Providing information and responding to inquiries regarding Downtown businesses, government and 

educational facilities, services, facilities, and events  
• Providing directions  
• Setting up and staffing information kiosks, as needed  
• Conducting street surveys and distributing informational material as needed 
• Visiting downtown business owners and managers to share information and report concerns  
• Informing panhandlers about the Downtown no-panhandling ordinance  
• Informing citizens how to effectively handle panhandling situations  

Any other related service as deemed necessary and appropriate by DDA staff 
 
Security-related functions may include:  
 
• Serving as an extra set of eyes and ears to the Miami Police Department  
• Providing “safe walk” services for Downtown employees and visitors  
• Reporting code enforcement and “quality of life” concerns to appropriate agencies  
• Assisting the City of Miami Homeless Assistance Program in addressing street population issues  
• Responding to calls concerning incidents such as suspicious persons or injuries and alerting other 

responders (police, fire rescue, Homeless Assistance Program) as appropriate  



• Monitoring and patrolling the Downtown area with the aim of deterring criminal activity and disruptive 
street behavior 

• Maintaining open communication with Miami Police Department personnel   
• Conducting routine patrol of downtown parks and other public gathering spaces  
• Coordinating with and assisting the DDA’s “Downtown Enhancement Team,” which provides litter pick-up, 

graffiti removal, and landscape maintenance services  
• Monitoring and reporting deficiencies to City services to ensure that streets remain bright and clean  
• Any other related service as deemed necessary and appropriate by DDA staff 
 
Service Area 
 

 
 
 

 
II. Question and Answer Session 

 
a. It was mentioned that you are reinstating service. Does that mean that you had service as one 

point and then phased it out?   
 
Answer: 
No.  We currently have a Downtown Ambassador Service and are requesting proposals to provide the 
service again in Downtown.   

 
b. Who has the current contract? 

 
Answer: 









responder prior to engaging in first aid or CPR.  The Ambassadors typically do not perform first 
aid/CPR; they are instructed to call first responders for assistance.  But, there may be an instance 
where it may be required; therefore it is a training we emphasize to the contractor for the 
Ambassadors to be trained on.   
 

dd. Can the contractor use tablets vs. smart phones so that the Ambassadors have access to the 
internet on the field?  
 
Answer: Yes, the contractor may put it in their proposal as part of their services.   

 
ee. Is the Miami DDA happy with the current uniform? 

 
Answer: The Miami DDA is currently looking into changing the uniform, but it has not been 
finalized. The Contractor will be responsible for supplying, at its own expense, uniforms to all 
Ambassadors. A photograph of the current Ambassador uniform is provided in Attachment B. 
Please refer to section 2.9. 

 
These uniforms shall be specified in style, logo compliance, and color by the DDA. All Ambassadors 
must be in uniform while on duty and must present a neat, clean, and positive image at all times. 
The current uniform consists of black docker-style pants, a short-sleeved white button down 
collared security shirt with embroidered logo, and a black baseball cap with embroidered logo. A 
photograph of the current Ambassador uniform is provided in Attachment B. Please refer to section 
2.9. 

 
ff.  How do people know about the Ambassador Program?  Do you distribute printed 

materials/brochures to inform the Downtown community about the Program?  
 
Answer: The Miami DDA has provided informational brochures to Downtown stakeholders to 
provide them information on the services provided by the Ambassadors.  Additionally, there is 
information on the Miami DDA website (www.miamidda.com) about the Ambassador services.  The 
brochures have not been distributed to hotels.  As part of their services, the DWNTWN 
Ambassadors visit new and existing businesses regularly to provide information about Downtown 
(events, road closures, etc.).      

 
gg.  How often are safe walks used? 

 
Answer: Over the past year, safe walk requests have increased from the Downtown businesses and 
visitors.  

 
hh.  Does the Miami DDA request extra police for special events? 

 
Answer: Organizers of a special event in Downtown Miami are required to apply for a special 
events permit.  The Miami Police Department is one of the departments that must sign off on the 
permit.  If additional police officers are required for an event, the organizer will be advised of the 
need for additional police. Ambassadors are provided as an “enhanced service” for special events 
that occur in Downtown.  

 
ii. What is the interaction between the Ambassadors and the City of Miami Homeless Assistance 

Program? 
                           

Answer: As the Ambassadors are very visible at the street level, they interact with homeless 
individuals on a daily basis.  As they interact with the homeless individuals or receive calls for 
service from Downtown stakeholders about homeless individuals, their protocol is to contact the 
City of Miami Homeless Assistance Program to provide information on services available for the 
homeless individual(s). The number one call for services made to the Ambassadors is for quality of 
life/homeless related issues.   

 
jj. Was the pre-submittal meeting mandatory? 

http://www.miamidda.com/
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